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From: SDS
To: Mueller, Kenneth Alan; SDS
Subject: RE: NetMSDS Email Request
Date: Wednesday, June 06, 2018 2:24:39 PM
Attachments: Philube MW.pdf


Thank you for contacting Phillips 66 Product Safety. Per your request, please find the attached Material Safety Data
 Sheet. Please note this is a discontinued product, therefore the SDS will not be updated going forward. However, it
 is still considered valid for the material.


For your convenience, all SDSs for our current products are OSHA HCS 2012 (29 CFR 1910.1200), Health Canada
 HPR (SOR/2015-17), and Mexico NOM-018-STPS-2015  (available in English, French, and Spanish) and may be
 found on our website at www.phillips66.com/SDS. You may also send requests to SDS@P66.COM or call
 (877)445-9198 or (800)762-0942.


Best Regards, 


Derek


Phillips 66 Product Safety
SDS@P66.com
(800)762-0942


-----Original Message-----
From: kam@purdue.edu [mailto:kam@purdue.edu]
Sent: Wednesday, June 06, 2018 11:49 AM
To: SDS <P66SDS@p66.com>
Cc: kam@purdue.edu
Subject: NetMSDS Email Request


Name:   Ken Mueller
Company: Purdue University
Phone:  765-494-5382
Fax:   
MSDS Number:


I'm looking for a current SDS for Philube MW EP Grease Please email me the SDS


Thanks



mailto:P66SDS@p66.com

mailto:kam@purdue.edu

mailto:P66SDS@p66.com

mailto:kam@purdue.edu






1. CHEMICAL PRODUCT AND COMPANY IDENTIFICATION 



  



2. COMPOSITION/INFORMATION ON INGREDIENTS 



See Section 8 for additional Exposure Limits. 



MATERIAL SAFETY DATA SHEET 



Philube® MW Grease 



Synonyms: Lubricant with Lithium additive, Non-Lead EP Grease
Formula: Mixture
Chemical Family: Mixture
CAS Number: Mixture
SAP Code: 1013022; 1013023; 1013024; 1014398
Product Code: 94160
MSDS Number: US028780
NFPA Ratings: Health 0, Flammability 1 , Reactivity 0
HMIS Ratings: Flammability 1, Reactivity 0, Health 0
Intended Use(s): General Purpose grease for automotive, industrial and agricultural use 



The intended use of this product is indicated above, if any additional use is known please 
contact us at the Technical Information number listed below. 



Manufactured By: 
Phillips 66 Company  
A Division of Phillips Petroleum Company  
Bartlesville, Oklahoma 74004 



Phone Numbers 
Emergency: (918) 661-8118 
Technical Information: (800) 766-0050 
For Additional MSDSs: (918) 661-5974



Chemical Specification  
and CAS #  



Weight % In 
Product  



ACGIH TLV 
(TWA) 



ACGIH 
Short Term 
Exposure 



Limit 



ACGIH 
Ceiling 
Limits 



ACGIH Skin 
Designation 



OSHA Final 
PEL (TWA) 



OSHA - 
Final PELs - 



Ceiling 
Limits 



OSHA - 
Final PELs - 



Skin 
Notation  



Petroleum based lubricants  
64742-54-7 



or 
~43 NE NE  NE  NE  NE NE  NE  



Solvent-Dewaxed Heavy Paraffinic 
Petroleum Distillates 



64742-65-0 
~43 NE NE  NE  NE  NE NE  NE  



Severely Hydrotreated Naphthenic 
Oil 



64742-52-5 
~24 NE NE  NE  NE  NE NE  NE  



Residual oils (petroleum), 
hydrotreated  
64742-57-0 



or 
~18 NE  NE  NE  NE  NE NE  NE  



Residual oils 
64742-62-7 ~18 NE  NE  NE  NE  NE  NE  NE  
Additives  ~ 8 NE  NE  NE  NE  NE  NE  NE  



Lithium Compound  ~ 6 NE  NE  NE  NE  NE  NE  NE  
Molybdenum disulfide 



1317 -33-5 ~ 1 10 mg/m3  NE  NE  NE  15 mg/m3 
(total dust) NE  NE  



Page 1 of 5Philube® MW Grease











3. HAZARDS IDENTIFICATION 



Emergency Overview 



Non-Hazardous. Pressure Injection. 



Potential Acute Health Effects 



Eye Contact:  May cause mild irritation. 



Skin Contact:  May cause mild irritation with prolonged or repeated contact.  



Inhalation:  No acute effects expected due to low vapor pressure. 



Ingestion: Slightly toxic (LD50 > 5 gm/kg). 



Subchronic and Chronic Effects: 



Prolonged and repeated exposure to oil mist poses a risk of pulmonary disease such as lung inflammation. This 
condition usually causes no symptoms. 



Lithium's use as a drug has provided valuable toxicity information. The information provided refers to ingestion or 
injection of lithium. Excess lithium intake can produce adverse kidney gastrointestinal tract and central nervous 
system effects. Dermatitis following absorption of lithium has also been reported.  



Aggravated Medical Conditions: No Known Applicable Information 



4. FIRST AID MEASURES  



Eye Contact: Flush eyes with running water. If irritation or adverse symptoms develop, seek medical attention. 



Skin Contact: Wash skin with soap and water. If irritation or adverse symptoms develop, seek medical attention. 



Inhalation: Remove from exposure. If illness or adverse symptoms develop, seek medical attention.  



Ingestion: If illness or adverse symptoms develop, seek medical attention.  



Notes To Physician: For injection injuries, immediate medical treatment is required. Physicians may call the 
emergency number (918) 661-8118.  



5. FIRE FIGHTING MEASURES  



Fire Extinguishing Media: Carbon Dioxide, Dry Chemicals, Foam For small localized fires, sand or earth may be 
used.  



Flash Point: 356F (180C)
FP Method: COC, ASTM D92
Ignition Temperature: Unknown
Flammable Limits (% by Volume in Air)
Lower Explosive Limit - Not Applicable
Upper Explosive Limit - Not Applicable
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Fire Fighting Procedures: Evacuate area and fight fire from a safe distance. Use NIOSH approved self-
contained breathing apparatus and other protective equipment and/or garments described in Section 8 if 
conditions warrant. Use water spray to cool nearby containers and structures exposed to fire. 



Fire and explosion hazards: Oxides of carbon, nitrogen, boron, zinc, sulfur and lithium may be released when 
burned. 



6. ACCIDENTAL RELEASE MEASURES  



Sweep or gather up material and place in proper container for disposal or recovery. 



7. HANDLING AND STORAGE  



Avoid contact with eyes, skin or clothing. Avoid breathing vapors, mist, fume or dust. Wash thoroughly after 
handling. Use with adequate ventilation. Wear protective equipment and/or garments described in Section 8 if 
exposure conditions warrant. Launder contaminated clothing before reuse. Store in closed container. Store in 
well-ventilated area.  



If pressure injected under the skin, can cause gangrene if not treated. 



8. EXPOSURE CONTROLS/PERSONAL PROTECTION  



Eye Protection:  Wear safety glasses. 



Respiratory Protection:  For concentrations exceeding an applicable exposure limit, use NIOSH approved air 
purifying respirator equipped with P95 filters, for particulate with time weighted average exposure limit not less 
than 0.5 mg/M3. 



Skin Protection:  Use gloves resistant to the material(s) contained in this product. 



Ventilation:  Use adequate ventilation to control concentrations below applicable exposure limits. 



Other Personal Protection: Personal protection information shown in Section 8 is based upon general 
information as to normal uses and conditions. Where special or unusual uses or conditions exist, it is suggested 
that the expert assistance of an industrial hygienist or other qualified professional be sought. 



Exposure Limits: OSHA PEL and ACGIH TLV for oil mists is 5 mg/m3 



9. PHYSICAL AND CHEMICAL PROPERTIES  



Physical State: Liquid
Appearance: Black or very dark grey
Odor: Mild, Petroleum odor 
Odor Threshold (ppm): Unknown
Boiling Point: >500F (>260C)
Melting/Freeze Point: Not Established
Vapor Pressure: <0.1 mm Hg @ 20C (68F)
Vapor Density (Air=1): >1
Specific Gravity @ 20 C (Water=1): 0.87-0.93 @ 60/60F (16/16C)
Percent Volatile by Volume: Negligible
Evaporation Rate (Butyl Acetate=1): <0.1
Water Solubility: Slight
Viscosity: 70-85 cSt @ 210F (99C) (Base Oil)
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10. STABILITY AND REACTIVITY 



11. TOXICOLOGICAL INFORMATION  



Other Health Effects: 



These products may contain petroleum base oils which may be refined by various processes including severe 
solvent extraction, severe hydrocracking or severe hydrotreating. None of the oils require a cancer warning under 
the OSHA Hazard Communication Standard (29 CFR 1910.1200). 



Pressurized injection of product under the skin can lead to seriously inflammed tissue. If left untreated injury can 
become gangrenous. 



Continuous skin contact with used motor oils has caused skin cancer in laboratory animals. Avoid prolonged skin 
contact with used motor oil.  



12. ECOLOGICAL INFORMATION  



No data at this time.  



13. DISPOSAL CONSIDERATIONS  



Disposal should be made in accordance with federal, state and local regulations. 



14. TRANSPORT INFORMATION  



15. REGULATORY INFORMATION  



EPA SARA 311/312 (Title III Hazard Categories) 



Petroleum based lubricants ~43 64742-54-7 
Regulated Substance on TSCA Inventory: Listed 
Canada - Domestic Substances List: Listed 



Solvent-Dewaxed Heavy Paraffinic Petroleum Distillates ~43 64742-65-0 



Stability: Stable
Hazardous Polymerization: Will Not Occur
Incompatability (Materials to Avoid): Oxygen and strong oxidizing agents.
Hazardous Decomposition Products: Oxides of carbon, nitrogen, boron, zinc, sulfur and lithium may be 



released when burned.



DOT Shipping Description: Not Regulated
IMDG Shipping Description: Not Regulated
ICAO/IATA Proper Shipping 
Name: 



Not Regulated



Acute Health: No
Chronic Health: No
Fire Hazard: No
Pressure Hazard: No
Reactivity Hazard: No
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Regulated Substance on TSCA Inventory: Listed 
Canada - Domestic Substances List: Listed 



Severely Hydrotreated Naphthenic Oil ~24 64742-52-5 
Regulated Substance on TSCA Inventory: Listed 
Canada - Domestic Substances List: Listed 



Residual oils (petroleum), hydrotreated ~18 64742-57-0 
Regulated Substance on TSCA Inventory: Listed 
Canada - Domestic Substances List: Listed 



Residual oils ~18 64742-62-7 
Regulated Substance on TSCA Inventory: Listed 
Canada - Domestic Substances List: Listed 



Additives ~ 8 
Regulated Substance on TSCA Inventory: Listed 



Lithium Compound ~ 6 
Regulated Substance on TSCA Inventory: Listed 



Molybdenum disulfide ~ 1 1317-33-5 
Regulated Substance on TSCA Inventory: Listed 
New Jersey Right-to-Know List: Listed 
Massachusetts Right To Know List: Listed 
Canada - Domestic Substances List: Listed 



16. OTHER INFORMATION  



Revision Summary: 



This Material Safety Data Sheet (MSDS) has been revised to conform with the American National Standards 
Institute (ANSI) 16 Section Format. 



Phillips Petroleum Company (references to Phillips Petroleum Company or Phillips includes its divisions, affiliates and subsidiaries) believes that the 
information contained herein (including data and statements) is accurate as of the date hereof. NO WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS 
FOR ANY PARTICULAR PURPOSE OR ANY OTHER WARRANTY, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, IS MADE AS CONCERNS THE INFORMATION 
HEREIN PROVIDED. The information provided herein relates only to the specific product designated and may not be valid where such product is used 
in combination with any other materials or in any process. Further, since the conditions and methods of use of the product and information referred to 
herein are beyond the control of Phillips, Phillips expressly disclaim any and all liability as to any results obtained or arising from any use of the product 
or such information. No statement made herein shall be construed as a permission or recommendation for the use of any product in a manner that 
might infringe existing patents. 



Preparer: Health, Environment and Safety Department
Date Prepared: 05/18/2001
Supersedes: 04/30/1998
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